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Built in 1914, this large masonr,^ building display^

some of the characteristics assdeia-fe^d with the Neo-piassic 
Revival. Chronologically, the building dates from £he period 
when this style was popular for government buildings, court­ 
houses and structures of higher education. The main facade 
of the Centro Asturiano is characterized by a five-part 
composition, slightly in antis, with monumental Doric columns 
projecting and rising the full distance from the stylobate 
to the cornice, thereby dividing the building vertically. 
It is important to note at this point, that although the 
afore stated are features more commonly associated with 
Beaux-Arts Classicism, the overall feeling of the building 
is more in keeping with the Neo-Classic. The building is 
constructed on a tall granite base, the windows of which are 
partially below ground and have radiating voussoirs. This 
base takes the form of a stylobate; the bases of the columns 
rest on it and the wide sweeping stone stair rises to the top 
of it. The main entrance is a pair of double doors with 
glazed panels and it is flanked by two pairs of double-hung 
sash windows with transoms. Five flat terra cotta panels 
with bas relief design are located between first and second 
floors and between columns. Above them are the five round- 
arched windows with keystones which admit light to the second 
floor. There are six small eyebrow windows in the architrave 
which is surmounted by a plain wide cornice and the flat roof 
is surrounded by a stone balustrade which runs between piers. 
Identical treatment is given to the north and south elevations 
as is seen on the west front. Both sides are interrupted at 
their midpoints for an entranceway with wide curving stair. 
At the extreme rear of the building is a four-story section 
which is devoid of any exterior decoration and has only two 
single sash windows per floor on the east, north and south.

The building occupies a very prominent open position 
on one of Tampa's busiest streets and is kept in very good 
condition.
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TATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Centra Asturiano of Tampa was formed as a social and 
civic club in the fall of 1902 as a branch of the Centro 
Asturiano de la Habana, the largest Cuban centered men's club. 
The club serviced in its peak years over 3,000 men of predom­ 
inately Spanish-Cuban ancestry although the center was open 
to any white males. A key role of the club was the La 
Beneficencia Asturiana which provided complete medical care 
to some 7,000 family members. The club operated the famous 
Centro Asturiano Hospital (recently torn down) on Bayshore 
where until 1945 doctors worked on a straight salary basis.

The club has had two main clubhouses in its history. A 
wood and brick structure built in Ybor City in 1908 burnt down 
and was replaced by the present structure on Nebraska Avenue 
in 1914. The present structure was designed by Tampa's 
leading architect of the period, F. Leo El^iott. The latter 
club became the center of an active Spanisn theatre and opera 
exchanging numerous special events between Tampa and Havana. 
Funds for these events often went to finance such things 
as a cemetery, a sanitarium in Monte Narance, Spain, and 
complete family serviced for the needy. Its school for Engli 
acquainted some 4,000 Latins with North American customs and 
language. Architecturally, this building successfully combines 
the dignity of Neo-Classic emphasis with Beaux-Jfcrts elements.
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